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FCM Bank Limited

Directors’ report
Faor the year ended 3! December 20135

The directors have pleasure in submitting their fourth apnual report, together with the audited financial
statements of FCM Bank Limited (“the Bank™)} for the vear ended 31 Deceinber 2015.

Principal activities

The Bank is licensed as a credit institution under the Banking Act, Cap.371.

Performance review

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Bank recorded a loss before tax of EURI 456,157 (2014
EURI 377,008). This loss, in the Bank’s initial stages, 1s broadly in line with projections and will reduce as we
continue with our business plan In terms of growth with the aim of reaching profitability. Afier accounting for a
deferred tax credit, the loss after tax amounted w EURT 321,410 (2014; ELRSOS, 670). The Bank continued its
strong customer acquisition, increasing the deposits by 27% during the year.

The Bank continues to deliver its strategic priorities to leverage technology and provide an enhanced dighal
experience to its customers whilst simplifying and streamlining internal processes.

Future business developmients

The Bank will continue to focus on growing s customer base to atiract retail deposits within Malta, The
business model of the Bank is o acquire quality investment securitles predominantly in developed FEuropean
economies and follows an investment approach to diversify its portfolio across geography and industry.

Results and dividends

The tesults for the year ended 31 December 2015 are shown in the staternent of profit or loss and other
comprehensive  income on page 8. The loss for the year afler taxaton is EURI 391410
(2014: EURSOS, 6703, This is as a result of minimal trading activity in the year due to the Baok still being in its
carly stages.

No dividend is being recommended as the company did not have any distributable reserves at the end of the
reporting period.

Going concern

The Bank's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives;
details of tis financiai instruments; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk are detailed in note 235 to the
financial stmements, The directors belicve that the Bank is well placed to manage its business risks successflly
and have a reasonable expectation that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseoable [uture. Accordingly, the going concern basis has been adopted in preparing these financial
statements.




FCM Bank Limited

Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Directors

The directors who served during the period were:
John Soler

Ronald Huggett

Anthony Mahaoney

Andrew James Low (resigned 25 September 2015)
Oyvind Oanes (appointed 19 February 2015)

In accordance with the company's articles of association all the directors are to remain in office.

Post-balance sheet events

On 29 February 2016 the issued ordinary share capital was increased by EURA00,000. The
EURS500,000 increase in issued and called up share capital was effected via a cash consideration.

On 26 May 2016 the issued ordinay share capital was further increased by EURS500,000. The
increase in issued and called up share capital was effected via a cash consideration,

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte Audit Limited as auditor of the company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Ronald Huggett
Director




FCM Bank Limited

Preparation of financial statements and directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are required by the Companies Act (Cap.386) to prepare financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU which give a true and fair view of the state of
alfairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Bank for the year then
ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors should:

r select suitable accounting policies and then apply thern consistently;
. make judgements and estimates thal are reasonable; and
. prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it s inappropriate to presume that the

Banlk will continue in business as a soing concern,

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Baak, and which enable the Directors to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Banking Act (Cap.371) and the Companies Act (Cap.386 of the Laws
of Mait). This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Bank, and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and ather irregularitics.

Alter reviewing the Bank's plans for the coming financial periods, the Directors are satislied that af the time of
approving the financial statements, it is appropriale to continue adopting the going concern basts in preparing
the fiancial statements.




D I i
e o I tte Deloitte Audit Limited

Deloitte Place
Mriehel Bypass
Mriehel BKR 3000
Malta

Tel; +356 2343 2000, 2134 5000
Fax: +356 2133 2606
info@deloitte.com.mt
www.deloitte.cam/mt

Company Ref No: 51312
VAT Reg Mo: MT2013 6121
Exemption number. EXO2155

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of

FCM Bank Limited

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FCM Bank Limited (the “Bank”) set out
on pages 8 to 46, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows of the Bank for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities in the Directors’ Report on page
5, the directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
and the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Bank. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Deloitte refers to ana or maore of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee ("DTTLY), its network of member firms, and their related
entities. DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as "Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients.
Please see www.deloitte.com/mt/about for a more detailed description of DTTL and its member firms.

Deloitte Malta refers to a civil partnership, constituted between limited liability companies, and its affiliated operating entities: Deloitte Services Limited, Deloitte Technology
Selutions Limited, Deloitte Consulting Limited, and Deloitte Audit Limited. The latter is authorised to provide audit services in Malta in terms of the Accountancy Profession
Act. A list of the carporate partners, as well as the principals authorised to sign reports an behalf of the firm, is available at www.deloitte.com/mt/about.

Cassar Torreglani b Associates is a firm of advacates warranted to practise law in Malta and is exclusively authorised to provide legal services in Malta under the Deloitte brand.



Deloitte.

Independent auditor’s report (continued)
to the members of

FCM Bank Limited

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the FCM
Bank Limited as of 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Auditor’s responsibility

The Banking Act (Cap. 371) requires us to report whether we have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief are necessary for the purposes of our
audit, whether in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Bank so far as appears
from our examination thereof, whether the financial statements are in agreement with the books, and
whether in our opinion, and to the best of our knowledge and according to the explanations given to
us, the financial statements give the information required by law in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view.

We are also required to state whether the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Opinion

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
are necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept so
far as appears from our examination thereof and the financial statements are in agreement with the
books.

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Banking
Act (Cap. 371) and the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

-
Sarah Curmi as Director

in the name and on behalf of

Deloitte Audit Limited

Registered auditor

Mriehel, Malta.

16 June 2016



FCM Bank Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2015

Notes
interest income 4
Interest expense 5
Net interest income
Fee and commission expense G
Net trading gains 7
Other income &
Impairment of available-for-sale investments
Operating income
Administrative expenses
Employes and directors compensation and benefits 9
L.oss before income fax 10
income tax credit 11

{.oss for the year

Other comprehensive income
fterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or logs:
Available-for-sale investrments:
- change in fair value
- transfer to profiioss on Impairment
- deferred tax thereon

Other comprehensive loss for the year
net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year

2015
EUR

1,982,135

{1,620,346)

361,789

(23,242)
65,109
5,566

(182,587)

226,626

{1,009,832)
(672,960)

(1,456,757)

64,747

(1,391,410)

{319,150}
182,587
47,797

(88,766)
(1,480,176)

2014
EUR

1,428 583
(1,174,149)

255,434

(17,696)
4,198
17,500

258,436

(1,044,563)
(594,881)

{1,377.008)
471,338

(905,670)

(250,477)

(1,068 ,480)




FCM Bank Limited

Statement of financial position
31 December 2015

2015 2014
Notes EUR EUR
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17 18,698,812 8,270,482
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 13 3,832,700 1,227,536
Held-to-maturity investments 14 17,149,606 24,068,663
Available-for-sale investments 14 8,644,587 4,948,738
Loans and receivables 14 6,457,575 8,234,016
Intangible assets 16 217,768 203,564
Property, plant and equipment 15 35,169 57,842
Deferred tax 18 1,003,045 888,177
Other assets 136,135 149,673
Prepayments and accrued income 19 628,532 585,367
Total assets 56,803,929 48,635,069
Liabilities
Amounts owed to customers 20 48,906,650 38,430,577
Trade and other payables 21 701,259 883,028
Other liabilities 22,034 2,517,302
Total liabilities 49,629,943 41,830,807
—_— -
Equity
Share capital 22 10,350,000 9,500,000
Investment revaluation reserves (181,675) (92,909)
Accumulated losses (2,994,339) (1,602,929)
Total equity 7,173,986 7,804,162
Total liabilities and equity 56,803,929 48,635,069
—e————— ]

ts on pages 8 to 46 were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2016 and signed on its
-

onald Huggett
Director




FCM Bank Limited

Statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

Balance at 1 January 2014

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Available-for-sale investments:
-Change in fair value, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year
tszue of share capital

Balance at 1 January 20185

l.oss for the year

Other comprehensive [oss, nat of tax
Avaitable-for-sale investments:
-Change in fair value, net of tax
-Transfer to profitfioss

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Issue of share capital

Balance at 31 December 2015

10,350,000

Investment
Share revaluation Accumulated

capital reserve losses Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
8,000,000 69,901 {697 258) 7,372,642
- . (905,670) (905,670}

- (162,810) . (162,810

- (182,810) {905,670) (1,068,480)
1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
8,500,000 {92,909) (1.602,529) 7,804,162
- . (1,391,410) (1,391,410)

- (207,448) . (207,448)

- 118,682 - 118,682
“ {BB,766) (1,391,410 (1,480,178)
850,000 - - 850,000
{181,675) {2,004,339) 7,173,986
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FCM Bank Limited

Statement of cash tlows
Year ended 31 December 2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received

interast paid

Cash payment to employees and suppliers

Cperating loss before changes in operating assets

and liabilities

Cash flaws from operating activities before
changes in operating assets and fabilities

Net increase in deposits from customaers
Net increase in other assets
Net (decrease)/increase in other liabilities

Nef cash from operating aclivities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assels

Acquisition of financiat instruments
Proceeds from sale of financial instruments

Net cash from/used in) investing achivities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital

Net cash from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year (note 17)

2015
EUR

2,238,218
(1,726,228)
(1,947,201)

(1,435,211}

10,476,073
(99,431)
(2,495,268)

6,446,163

{1,604)

(70,235)
(9,579,680)
11,783,676

2,132,157
850,000
850,000

9,428,320

9,270,492

18,698,812

2014
EUR

1,400,232
(850,352)
(1,549,204)

(990,324)

22,224,556
(85,056)
1,512,237

22661413

(18,617)
(102,762)
(31,960,411)
9,468,815

(22,612,975)

1,500,000

1,600,000
1,548,438

7,722,003

9,270,492

11



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2015

L

2.1

2.2

Reporting entity

FCM Bank Limited ¢hereafter “the Bank’) is a limited liability company domiciled in Malta.
Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of the
Banking Act (Cap. 371} and the Companies Act (Cap. 386) enacted i Malta, which requires adherence to
Intemational Financial Reporting, Standards as adopted by the EU (hereafter referred to “IFRSs as adopted
by the EU™).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments
classifted as at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale investments which are stated at their
fair values. The significant accounting policies adopted are set out below,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to trznsfer a lability in an ordecty
transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entivety, which are deseribed as [ollows:

- Level | inputs are guoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entily can access ai the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level |, that are observable for the
asset or lability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or Hability,

For assets and labilities tha! are recognised in the finencial statements at lair value on a recurring basis,
the Company determines when transfers are deemed to have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy at
the end of each reporting period,

Initial application of an International Financial Keporting Standard and International Financial
Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective

Initial application of an International Financial Reparting Standard

On 20 May 2013, IFRIC 21 Levies was issued, IFRIC 21 is an interprotation of TAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 1AS 37 sets out criteria {or the recognition of a liability, one
of which ig the reguirement for the entity 1o have a present obligation as a result of 2 past event (known as
an obligating event). The interpretation clarifies that the abligating cvent that gives rise to a Hability to pay
a levy. The standard became applicable for apnual periods beginning on or after 17 June 2014,

12



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2045

d

Summary of significan{ accounting policies (continned)

Initial spplieation of av International Financial Reporting Standard and Internatioral Financial
Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective {continued)

International Financlal Reporting Standards in Bsue but Hot yet effective

The final version of [FRS ¢ Financial Instruments issued on 24 July 2014 brings together the classification
ardd measurernent, impairment and hedge accounting phases of the LASB's project to replace 1AS 39
Financial (nstruments: Recognition and Measurement', The Standard supersedes all previous versions of
IFRS 9.

[FRS 9 introduces a logical approach for the classification of financial assets, which is driven by cash flow
characteristics and the business model in which an asset i held. This single, principle-based approach
replaces existing rule based requirements that are generally considered to be overly complex and difficult
to apply. The new model also results in a single, forward-looking “expected losy” impairment model that
will require more timely recognition of expocted credit losses.

IFRS O 15 elfective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018. This standard hazs not yet
been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers issued tn May 2014 is the result of a convergence project
between the IASH and the FASB. JFRS 5 specifies how and when an IFRS reporter will recognise
revenue as well as requiring such entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative,
relevant disclosures, The standard supersedes 1AS 18 'Revenue’, 1AS 11 'Construction Contracts” and a
number of revenue-related interpretations. Application of the standard is mandatory for all IFRS reporters
and it applies to uearly all contracts with customers: the main exceptions being leases, financial
instruments and insurance contracts. By virtue of an amendment issued on 11 September 20135, the
effective date of the Standard was deferred by one vear to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application being permitted. This Standard has not as vet been endorsed by the ELIL

On 19 January 2016, the TASDE issued Amendments to 1AS 12 to clarify how to account for deferred tax
assels related o debt instruments measured at fair value 1o address diversity in practice. This amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017. This amendment has not yet been
endorsed by the U,

On 12 December 2013, the IASR issued amendments to 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as part of the
‘Annual lmprovements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle’). Claritying that an entity providing key management
parsonnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a related party of the
reporting entity. The standard is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after § February 2015,

13



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2015

2.2

a
i

Sumary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Initial application of an International Financial Reporting Standard and International Financial
Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Iternational Financial Reporting Standards i issue but not yat effective (continied)

On 18 December 2014, the JASH issued an amendment to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The
amendments aim at clarifying IAS | to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising their
judgement in preseniing their financial reports. The amendments are designed to further encourage
companies to apply professional judgement in determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements, The amenchments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and
that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures.
Furthermors, the amendments clarify that companies should use professional judgement in determining
where and in what order information is presented in the financial disclosures. This amendment is
applicabie for annual periods beginning on or after [ January 2016,

The directors are currently assessing the impact that the adoption of these Interpational Financial
Reporting Standurds will have on the financial statements of the company in the period of initial
application.

Functinnal and presestation currency

The financial statements are presented in Euro, which currency represents the functional currency of the
Bank,

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forcign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate
prevailing at the date of the transaction,

Maonetary assets and Habilittes denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are
transiated to Euvo at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange difTerences arising on
tanglation are recognised in the profit or loss. Non-monetary agsets and liabilities that are measuored in
termis of historical cost in a foreign cwrrency are translated vsing the cxchange rate at the date of the
rransaction. Non-monetary assets and Habilities denominasted in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated to Buro at foreign exchange rates ruling at the date the fair value was determined.

Financial sssets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at [air value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity finencial assets and available-for-sale investments. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assels were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition.

14



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2015

2,

2.5

2.5.1

2.5.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assefs (continned)
Financiaf assets a¢ fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises two sub-categories: financial assets clagsified as held for trading, and financial
agsets designaied by the Bank as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual patiern of short-lerin profit-taking after initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are measured at their fair value. Gains and losses
arising from a change in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in the period fn which they arise.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity thal the Bank has
the positive intentton and ability to hold to maturity other than those that upon initial recognition are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, those that are designated as available-for-sale (inancial
assets and those that meet the definition of loans and receivables are classified as held-to-maturity
ivestments.

After initial recognition, held-to-maturity investiments are measured at amortised cost asing the effective
interest method. Gaings and losses ave recognised in profit or loss when the financial asget is derecognised
or impaired and through the amortisation process.

When applying the effective interest method, the annoal amortisation of any discount or premium is
ageregated with other investment income receivable over the term of the instrument, il any, so that the
revenue recognised in each period represents a constant yield on the investment,

Available-for-sale OGuancial assets

Available-for-sale financial assels are those non-derivative financial assels that ave either designated in
this category by the Bank or not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity invesiments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Afier inital recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured ai their fair value. Gains and losses arising from a change in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary assets, untit the linancial asset is derccognised, at whick time the comulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss a3 a
reclassification adjustment. interest calculated using the effective interest method i3 recognised in profit or
foss.

15



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2015

2.5.5

Summary of significant aceounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loanrs and recefvalies

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market other than those that are held for trading or are designated upon initial
tecognition as at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale financial assets or those for which
the company may not recover substantiatly all of its initial investment other than because of credit
deterioration,

Impaicment

All assets are tested for impairment except for financial assets measured at falr value through profit or loss
and deferred tax agsets.

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting pericd whether there is objeclive evidencs that a finaneial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or 2 group of financial assels is tmpaired
and impairiment losses are incurred iT there is objective evidence of impairment a3 a resull of one or more
evenis that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event’) and that loss event {or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of {inancial assets that can

be reliably estimated.

In the case of financial assels that are either carried at amortised cost or classified as available-for-sale
investments, objective evidence of impairment includes observable data about the following loss event -~
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty,

An bmpairment loss is the amount by which the canying amodnt of 2n asset exceeds its recoverable
AMOLL,

For loans and receivables or held-to maturity investments, i there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incwrred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present valve of estimated future cash flows (exchuding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the

loss is recognised in profit or loss.

[f, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related
ohijectively to an cvent occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through an allowance account, but se that the reversal does not resull in a
carmying amount that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impaiment not been
recngnised at the date the impairment is reversed, The amouat of the reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When a decling in the failr value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and there is objective cvidence that the asset is impalred, the cumulative
impairment loss that had been recognised in other comprehensgive income s reclassified from equity to
profit ar loss as a reclassification adjustment and 15 measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and current fair value, less any impairment foss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

16



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2003

2.6

2.7

2.8

Financial liahilities and equity instruments

Financial liabifities and equily insteuntents are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into, and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial Habilities are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial Habilitles not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs thal are directly attributable to their issue. Financial
Habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the elfective interest method, except for
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value,

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities classified as held far
trading and those designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. During the cwTent
period the Bank did not designate any financial Habilities as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recopnition.

Financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method include
amounts owed to customers. The pain or loss on financial liabilities classified as at fair vaive through
profit or oss is recognised in profit or loss,

For financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the
financial liability is derecognised and through the amortisation process whereby any difference between
the proceeds net of transaction costs, and the settlement or redemption is recognised over the term of the
(inancial Hability.

Equity instrumenis are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,
Recognition, de-recogaition and offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial asscls and financial labilitics are recognised when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

All purchases and sales of securities are recognised and derccognised on trade date, which is the date the
Bank becomes party to the comract,

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash fows from the financial asset
expite, or when the Bank transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A
financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished. This occurs when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends sither to settlo on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liabilicy simubtancously.

Classification of financial assets and fAnancial Habilities at fair value through profit ar loss upon
initial recognitian

The Bank considers the statement of comprehensive income to be the primary repart of performance
within the annual financial statements and ensures that, as far as practicable, ail aspects of its performance
are wholly and fairly reflected in profit or loss.
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1.8

2,10

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Classification of financial assets and financial Tabilities at fair value through profit or loss apon
initiaf recognition (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
where such designation results in more relevant information because either:

- it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsisiency (sometimes refened Lo
as an “accounting mismaich”) that would otherwise arise from measuwring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gatns and losses on them on different bases; or

- a group of financial assets, financial labililics or both, is managed and its pecformance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank's documented risk management and investment strategy, and
information about the group is provided intemally on that basis to key management persannel, including
the Board of Directors,

Property, plant and equipment
Pruperty, plant and equipment are classified into the following class — office furniture and fittings.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Subsequent costs are included in the aszset’s
carrying amount when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wiil flow to the
Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure on repairs and mainienance of
property, plant and equipment is recognised as an expense when incimed.

Property, plant and equipment are derccognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition represent the difference
between the net dispozal proceeds, ifany, and the carrying amount, and are included in profit or loss in the
period of de-recognition.

Tangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losges.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment commences when these assets are available for use and are
charged to profit or loss s as to write off the cost of assets, less any estimated residual value, over their
estimated useful life, using the straight line method, on the following bases:

Office furniture and fittings 10% per annem

The depreciation method applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed al the end of cach
reporting period.
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211

2.12

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period the Bank reviews the carrying amount of its propeny, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss,
IF such indication exisis, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to s recoverable amount, as caleulated,
The recoverable nmount {5 the higher of fair value less costs Lo sell and value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the loss is recognised in other comprehensive income ta the extent that it does not
exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that asset. An impairment loss recognised in a prior year
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impaimment Joss was recognised. When an impairment foss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assel is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent
that it does not exceed the carrying amount thal would have been determined had no impairment 1oss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Impairment reversals are recognised tmmediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impaioment reversal is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless an
impairment loss on the same asset was previously recognised in profit or foss.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the cxpected future sconomic benefits that are
artributable to the asset will flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be measured reilably.
Expenditure on an intangible asset is recognised as an expense in the period when it is incurred unless it
forms part of the cost of the asset that meets the recognition criteria.

The useful tife of intangible assets is assessed to determine whether it is finite or indefinitc. intangible
assets with a finite useful tife are amortised. Amortisation is charged to proflit or loss so as to write off the
cost of the intangible asset less any estimared residual value, over their estimated useful lives. The
amortisation method applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporiing period.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefils are expected from
their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition represent the difference between the nel
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount, and are inchuded in profit or loss in the period of de-
recopnition. Expenditure on research activitics is recognised as an expense in the pertod in which it is
incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the company’s development of sofiware is

recognised only ifall of the lollowing can be demonstrated by the company:

»  the technical feasibility, the availability of resources and the intention and ability of  completing the
asset 5o thal it will be available Tor use or sale,

= gvailable for use or sale,

= how the asset will generate probabie future economic benefits, and

= the ability to measure reliably the expenditure atiributable to the asset during its develapment.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

Summary of significant aceounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure (s recoghised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. After initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assels are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on a strajght-ling basis over their estimated useful
lives from the date when they become available for use, which is generally assumed to be five years.,

Provisions, contingent kabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a prescnt legal or constructive obligation as a resull of a past
gvend, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecconomic bencfits will be required to
settle the obligation and a relinble estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Pravisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where approprizte, the risks specific to the
liability. Provisions are not recognised for fulure operating losses.

A contingent Hability is (a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-pccwrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity; or (b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recagnised because: i) it is not probable that an outliow of resources embodying ceonomic benefits will
be required (o settie the obligation; or (i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability. Contingent liabilities arc not recognized. Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the
pussibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic beneflts is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises [rom past events and whose existence will be confinmed
only by the occurrence or non-aceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity, Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow
of economic benefils is probable.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and defecred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the profit or
foss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprebensive income or
directly in equity, in which case it is also dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income or in equity
ag appropriate.

Current 1ax is he expected tax payable on the taxable ncome for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment Lo tax payable in respect of
previous periods. Deferred tax is provided using the batance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used lor taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to the temporary differences when they reverse based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the reporting date.
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2.15

2.16

Sumimary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available apainst which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and ate reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit wili be realised.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offsel when the Rank has a legally enlorceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and intends elther to setile on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the Hability
simultaneously.

Deferred rax assets and liabilities are offset when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to set off s
current tax assets and Habilities and the deferred lax agsets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation awthority on either the same taxable entity oc different taxable eatities which intend
either o settle current fax tiabilities and assets on a net basis, or o realise the assets and setile the
Habilities simuftaneously, in each fiture period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assels are expecied to be settled or recovered,

Revenue recognition

Revernue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will {low Lo the Bank
and these can be measured reliably. The following specific recognition criteria must alse be mel before
revenue is recognised,

Interest tncome iy acerwed on a time basis, by reference Lo the principal outstanding and at the effective
tnterest rale applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expecled life of the instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period o that inshument’s net
carrying amount. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimales cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the instrument but not fiture credit losses, The calculation includes payments and
recoipts that are an integral part of the effective intevest rate, transaction costs and all other discounts or
premiurms.

Fees and cotnissions that are earned on the execution of a significant act are recognised as revenue when
the significant act has been completed. Pees and commissions thal are earned as services are pravided to
the customer are recognised as revenue as the scrvices are provided. Where fees arc charged to cover the
cost of a continuing service, these are recognised on an appropriate basis over the relevant period.

Employee benelits

The Bank contributes towards the state pension mn accordance with local tegislation. The only obligation
of the Bank is to make the required contributions, Costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred,
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2.

217

.18

2.19

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or with a contraciual
period to maturity of less than 90 days; advances to banks repayable within 90 days from the date of the
advance; balances with the Central Bank of Malia, excluding reserve deposit requirements and treasury
bills with an original maturity of less than 90 days. Amounts owed to banks that are repayable on demand
ar with a contractual period to maturity of less than 90 days and which form an integral part of the Bank’s
cash management are included a5 a companent of cash and cash cquivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.

Dividends payable
Pividends payable on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities on the date they are declared.
L.eases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Lease
classification is made at the inception of the lease, which is the earlier of the date of the lease agreement
and the date of commitment by the parties to the principal provisions of the lease,

Rentals payable under cperating leases, less the aggregate benelil of incentives recelved from the lessor,
ave recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a siraight-ling bagis over the lease term unless another
systemaric basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit,

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that altect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made no judgements, other
than the one disclosed below, which can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and, at the end of the reporting peried, there were no key assumptions concerning the future, or
any other key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a significant risk of cawsing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year,

Recognition of deferred tax assels

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that profit will be
available against which the logses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax asgsets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits, The Bank makes an amnual assessment of whether or not it will have sufficient taxable
profits in future to realise the deferred tax assets, This is a matter of careful judgement and based on facts
and circumstances available as further explained in note (8.
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4, Interest income
2015
EUR
On bank deposits {725)
On debt and other fixed income instruments
- availabte-for-sale 527,090
- held-to-maiurity 1,364,955
- loans and receivables 411,135
2,303,180
Amoriisation of discounts and premiums
- available-for-sale (56,580)
- held-to-rnaturity {260,109)
- lpans and receivables (3,621)
(320,320)
1,982,135

2014
EUR

2,646

516,328
1,043,020
163,881

1,722,938

(66,5289)
(222,582)
(6,891)
(296,002)

1,428 583

Cash and cash equivalents includes a balance held with Central Bank of Malta which bears
interest at the rate set by the European Central Bank which at 31 December 2015 stood at -

0.3% per annurm {2014: -0.2% per annum).

A, Interest expense
2015
EUR
On amounts owed to custamers 1,620,346
6. Fee and commission expense
2015
EUR
Fee and commission expense 23,242

2014
EUR

1,174,149

2014
EUR

17,696

23



FCM Bank L.imited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2013

9.1

9.2

9.3

Net trading gains

2015 2014
EUR EUR
Loss on foreign exchange activities (349) (1,179)
Fair value movements, interest inceme and net gains on sale
of financial instruments af fair value through profit or loss 65,458 5,377
65,108 4,188
Other income
2015 2014
EUR EUR
Other income 5,666 17,600
Employee compensation and benefits
Key management personnel compensation
2015 2014
EUR EUR
Short-term benefits
Directors' emoluments:
- Directors' fees 66,712 34,831
- Directors' rernuneration 118,747 64,101
185,459 45,932
Personnel expenses incurred during the yeasr
are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
EUR EUR
Wages and salaries 650,731 576,989
Sacial security costs 22,229 17,692
572,860 584,881

The average oumber of persons employed during the year including the executive director was as follows:

2015 2014
No, No.

Managerial 4 4
Other 8 7
12 11
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10.

11.

12,

L.oss before tax

Loss before tax Is stated after charging:
2015 2014
EUR EUR

Total rernuneration pavable to the Bank's auditors for;

= the audit of the financial statements 13,500 9,500
- lotal fees payable to the company's auditor for non-

audit services other than other assurance services

and tax advisory services 3,100 9,688
16,600 19,188
Income tax credit
2015 2014
EUR EUR
Deferred tax credit 64,747 471,338

Tax applying the statutory domestic income tax rate and the income tax expense for the year are
reconciled as follows:

2015 2014

EUR EUR
L.oss before tax 1,466,157 1,377,008
T'ax charge at the applicable rate of 35% 509,655 481,853
Tax effect of:
Depreciation and amortisation {28,108) {22,080}
Unabsorbed tax losses (481,547) (459,873)
Deferred tax 64,747 A71,338
Total incoma tax credit 64,747 471,338

Operating leases

The Bank recognised minimum  lease  paymenis  onder  operating  leases  amounting 1o
EUR35,702 (2014: EUR45,449) as an expense for the year.

Operating lease payments represent tentals payable by the Bank for the use of office premises. The Bank’s
lease agreement provides for the rental of office premises for three years extendable for a further two
vears #t the lessee’s option. The Bank has extended the lease agreement for these lurther 2 years. The
lease agreement is cancellable upon the payment of a penalty equal to one year's rent.
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13. Fiaancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

[3ebt and other fixed income instruments
{zsued by public bodies:
- local govermment
- foraign government
Issued by other issuers:
- foreign ather

Listing status
-locat listed
-foreign listed

Summary of movements during the year
At the beginning of the year

Acquisitions

Matured

Movement in fair value

At the end of the year

2015
EUR

2,856,645
876,055

3,832,700

2,856,645
376,055

3,832,700

1,227,536
3,841,822
(1,250,000)

13,342

3,832,700

2014
EUR

1,227 536

1,227,536

1,227,536

1,227,536

599,743
1,233,750

(502,338)

(103,619)

1,227,536

Financial assets arc designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition where such

designation results it more relevant information because elther:

« it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as an “accounting mismatch™) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or recognising the gains

and losses on them on different bases; or

- a group of financial assets is managed and its perfonmance is evaluated on a falr value basis, in
accordance with the Bank’s documented risk management and investment strategy, and information abows
the position is provided internally on that basis to key managerscnt personnel, including the Credit and

Risk Committee,
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14,

14.1

[nvestments

Blebt and other fixed income instruments
- available-for-gala

- held-to-maturity

- [oans and receivables

Debt and other fixed income instruments classified as available-for-sale

issued by
- foreign issuers

Listing status:
- foreigh listed

Summary of movements during the year,
At the beginning of the year

Acquisitions

Dizposals

Amaorlisation

Movement in fair value

Movement in foreign exchange
impairment

At the end of the year

2015 2014
EUR EUR
8,644,587 4,949,739
17,149,606 24,068,663
6,457,575 8,234,016
32,251,768 37,252,418
2015 2014
EUR EUR
8,644,587 4,949,739
8,644,587 4,949,739
8,644,587 4,949,739
8,644,587 4,949,739
4,949,739 7,425,467
3,931,250 3,969,588
(103;158) (6,306, 140)
(56,590} (66,529)
(319,150) (250,477)
425,083 177,830
(182,587) -
8,644,587 4,949 739

During the year one investment classified as available-for-sale was deemed to be impaired and
therefore the gains/losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income were

reclassified to profit or loss.
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4.

14.2

14.3

Invesiments (continued)

Bebt and other fixed income instruments classified as held-to-maturity

Issued by:

- foreign issuers

Listing status:
- fareign listed

Summary of movements during the year:
At the beginning of the year

Acquisitions

Redemptions

Amortisation

At the end of the year

2015
EUR

24 068,663

24,068,663

24,068,663

24,068,663

24,068,662

{6,658,948)
{260,109)

17,149,606

2014
EUR

24,068,663
24,068,663

24,068,663

24,068,663

8417919
18,460,902
{2,587,576)

(222,682)

24 068,663

At 31 Deeember 2015 the fair value of held-to-maturity securittes amounted to AURI7,030,237 (2014:

EU/R23,903,7609.)

Debt and other fixed income instruments classitied as loans and receivables

Issued by other issuers:
- foreign other

Listing status:
- foraign unlisted

2015
EUR

6,457,575

6,457,575

6,457,578

6,457,575

2014
EUR

8,234,016

8,234,016

8,234,016

8,234,016
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14,

14.3

(2

Investnrents {continued)

Debt and other fixed income instruments classified as loans and reccivables (continued)

205 2014

EUR EUR
Summary of movements during ihe year
At the beginning of the year 8,234,016 .
Acquisitions 1,998,750 8,296,171
Redemptions (3,771,570) {565,264)
Amortisation {3,621} (6,891)
Al the end of the year 6,457,675 8,234,016

At 31 December 2015 the fiir value of loans and receivables amounted
(2014: FURS 230,752,

Property, plant and equipment

to EURS 448, 144

Computers,
Furniture hardware
and fittings and peripherals Total
EUR EUR EUR
Cost
AL 1 January 2014 TEATE 29,683 107,856
Additions 12,058 5,558 18,617
At 1 January 2015 90,231 36,242 126,473
Additions 1,604 - 1,804
At 31 December 2005 91,835 36,242 128,077
Accumutated Depreciation
At 1 January 2014 24,291 15,265 39,556
Charge for the year 17,636 14,439 29,075
At 1 January 2015 41,927 26,704 68,631
Charge for the year 18,273 6,004 24277
At 31 December 2015 60,200 32,708 92 908
Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2014 48,304 0,538 h7.,842
Balance at 31 December 2015 31,6356 3,534 35,164
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16. Intangible assets

Software
Cost FUR
At 1.January 2014 141,819
Additions 102,762
At 1 January 2015 244 681
Additions 70,235
At 31 December 2015 314,916
Amortisation
At 1 January 2014 7,106
Charge for year 34,011
At 1 January 2015 41117
Charge for year 56,031
At 31 December 2015 97 148
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014 203,564
At 31 December 2015 217,768

17. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash ecquivalents comprise balances with less than three months maturity from the date of
acquisition, including cash in hand and deposits held on call with banks.

2015 2014

EUR EUR

Repayable on call and at shor notice 18,388,764 0,140,956
Depositor compensation scheme resarve 310,048 129,536
18,698,812 8,270,492

Cash at bank earns interest at Qoating rates,
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18.

149

20.

Deferred tax assets
Recognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following:

2015 2014
EUR EUR

Tax value of losses and capital allowances
carry-forwards 903,037 839,132
Fair value re measurament of financial instrumenis 100,008 49045
1,003,045 8B8177

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utitised. The directors believe that the Baalk is well
placed to manage its business risks successfully and have a reasonable expectation that the deferred tax
asset will crystallise in the foresecable future. In assessing whether the deferred tax asset should be
recognised, the Dircetors have taken into account forecasts for the fortheoming five years. The Directors
wi}l continue to moenitor the position on an ongoing basis.

Prepayments and acerued income

2015 2014
EUR EUR
Accried income 494,301 564,104
Prepayments 134,231 21,263
628,532 585 367

Antounts owed o customers
2015 2014
EUR EUR
Term deposits 47,492 597 36,674,712
Savings accounts 1,414,053 1,755,865
48,906,650 38,430,577
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L Trade and other payables
2015 2014
EUR EUR
Trade payables . 17,686
Interest payable 589,262 508,622
Accrued expenses 114,997 358,720
701,259 883,028
22. Share capital
2018 2014
EUR EUR
Authorised:
Qrdinary shares at EUR| each 20,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and pald ap:
Ordinary shares at EUR | each fully paid 10,350,000 9 500,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitied to one vole per share at meetings of the Bank.

On 25 September 2005 and 29 December 2015 the jssugd share capital was increased by
EGR250,000 and EURGOO, 000 respectively, The EL/RESD.000 increase in issued and called up share
capital was effected via cash.

23. Related parties

Relaled party transactions during the year were as follows:

2015

2015 total 2015

EUR EUR % of total
interast expense on deposits 2,085 1,620,346 0. 1%
Compensation to key
management personnel
Directors' fee and remuneration 185,458 185,459 100%
Balances with related parties
Other asseis 37,033 136,134 27%
Deposits from customers 84,876 48,906,650 0.17%
Accrued interest on deposits
from customers 1,062 589,262 0.18%
Transactions with related parties
Operaling expenses 75,698 487,501 16%
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23,

24,

Related pariies (continued)

2014

2014 total 2014

EUR EUR % of total
Interest expense on deposits 1,280 1,174,149 0.1%
Compensation to key
management personnel
Oirectors' fee and remuneration 898,832 98,832 100%
Balances with related parties
Other assets 44 948 141,043 32%
Deposits from customers 169,782 38,430,577 0.42%
Accrued interest on depaosits
From customers 1,180 506,622 0.2%
Transactions with related parties
Operating expenses 61,974 495,944 12%

No expense has been recognised in the year for bad and doubtful debts in respect of amounts due from
related partics and there arc no provisions for doubtful debts in respect of outstanding amounts due by
related parties (2014: £UR Nil).

The immediate and ultimate parent company of the Bank is Gramercy Match Trust and the ultimate
controlling party 15 Timothy Charles Babich,

Fair vahies of financial asscts and financial liabititics

At 31 December 2015 the fair value of amounts owed o customers amounted to ELJRSS 799 417 (2014:
EUR38 838 111,

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments amounted to EL/RIZ,050,231 at the end of the reponting
period (2014 1 FUR23,903,769). The fair value of loans and receivables amount to EURG, 448, 144 (20140
EURE 230,732) at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities, other
than those described above, approximated their fair values due to the short term maturities of these assels
and liabilities,
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24, Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The loltowing table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recoguition al fair value, grouped into Levels | to 3.

Levet 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
2015
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
-focal listed debt instruments 2,956,645 - - 2,956 645
-fureign listed debt instruments _g7yeo0s55 . - 876,055
3,832 700 - - 3,832,700
Available-for-saje investments
-foreign lisled debt instruments 8,644 587 - - 8,644 587
Total 12,477,287 - - 12,477,287
2014
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
foreign listed debtinstruments 1227536 - - 1,227,536
1,227,536 - - 1,227,536
Available-for-sale investments
-foreign listed debt instruments 4945 739 - - 4.949 739
4,949,739 - o 949,739
Total 6,177,275 - - 6,177,275

34



FCM Bank Limited

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2015

24. Fair values of financial assets and Mnancial Habifities (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are not measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair vatue, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approxirmations
of fair value, grouped into Levels | to 3,

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
2015
Held-to-maturity investments
- foreign listed debt
instruments 17,149,606 - - 17,149,606
Loans and receivablos
- foraign unlisted debt
instruments - 5,457 575 - 6 457 575
17,149,606 6,457 575 - 23,607 181
2014
Held-io-maturity investments
- foreign listed debt
instruments 24 068,663 - - 24 068 663
Loans and receivables
- forgign unlisted debt
instruments - 8234016 - 8,234,016
24,068,663 8,234,016 - 32,302 679

25, Financial risk management
25.1 Imtroduction and overview
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Crediy risk: Credit risk stems from the possible non-prompt repayment o non-payment of existinig and
contingent obligations by the Bank’s counterpartics, resulting in the loss of equity and profit, as well as
risk that deterioration in the financial condition of & borrower will cause the asset value to decrease or be
extinguished. Country risk and settlement risk are included n this category, Country risk refers to the risk
of losses arvising from economic or political changes that alfect the eountry from which the assel
otiginates. Settlement risk refers to the risk of losses through failure of the counterparty to setile
outstanding dues on the settlement date owing to bankrupley or other causes.

- Market risk: Risk of lasses arising from unfavourable changes in the level and volatility of inlerest rates,
forgign exchange rates or investment prices.
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Financial risk management (continucd)
Introduction and overview (continued)

- Ligeidity risk: Liquidity risk may be divided imto two sub-categosies:

(1) Market (product} liquidity risk: Risk of losses arising from difficulty in accessing a product or market
ai the required time, price and amourt.

() Funding liquidity risk: Risk of losses arising from a timing mismatch between investing, placements
and (une raising aetivities resulting iy obligations missing the settlement date or satisfied at higher than
normal rates.

« Operational risk: Risk of dumage resulting from the lack of skilfil management or good governance
within the Bank and the inadequacy of proper contrel, which might involve internal operations, personnel,
the systern or external occurrences that in turn affect the income and capital funds of financial institutions.
The Bank has adopted an operational risk management framework and procedures, which provide for the
identification, assessment, management, monitoring and reporting of the Bank's operational risks.

The Bank's approach to management of credit, market and Hauidity risks is addressed in this note.
PP 2 Y

Risk management framework

The Board of Directory has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's risk
management framework. The Bank’s risk management polictes are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence o
lmits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions, products and services offered.

The Bank, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive controd environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk management

In order to minimise the credit risk undertaken, counderparty credit limits are defined with respect to
investment aclivities, which limits consider a counterparty’s creditworthiness, the value of collateral and
guarantees pledged, which can reduce the overall credit risk exposure, as well as the type and the duration
of the eredit asset. In order to examing a counterparty’s creditworthiness, country risk, quantitative and
qualitative characteristics, as well as the industry sector in which the counterparty operates are consgideored.
The Board of Directors has the final say in the approval process of new and exisling assets or credit
facilities.

The Bank manages, limits and conirels concentrations of credit risk wherever they are idemtified — in
particukar, to individual counterpariics and groups, and to industries and countties, The Bank structures the
levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
counterparty and to geographical and industey segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis
and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit
risk by product, industry sector and countey are approved tegularly by the Board of Directors,
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Financinl risk management {continued)
Credit risk management {conlinued)

The Bank's main exposures o credit risk on financial instrumments can be classified in the following
categories:
- Financial agsety recognised on-balance sheet and cash at bank. The maximum exposure io credit risk of

ihese financial assels equals their carrying amount.

The Bank's credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet asseis by LAS 39 categorisation, reflecting
the maximum exposure lo credit risk before collaterat held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

2015 2014
EUR EUR

Financial assets at fair value
threugh profit and foss 3,832,700 1,227 536
Available-for-gale investments 5,644,587 4,945,739
Held-to-maturity investments 17,149,606 24,088,663
l.oans and receivables 6,457,575 8,234,018
Cash and cash equivalents 18,698,812 8,270,492
Accrued income 494,301 564,104
Other assets 136,135 149,673
55,413,716 48,464 223

Concentrations of credit risk

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sector, Industry and by geographical location.
An analysis of concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown bafow:

2015 2014
EUR EUR

Concentration by sector
Monetary financial institutions 3,534,797 8,249 382
Govermnmert 18,999,715 21,110
Corporate 32,882,204 37,966,195
Securitisation - 1,227,536
55,413,716 48,464 223
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Financial risk management {continued)
Credit risk management (continued)
Concentrations of credit visk (continued)
Exposures analysed by focation

As at 31 December 20158

North America Europe Total
EUR EUR EUR
Government - 18,999,715 18,999,715
Monetary financial institutions - 3,531,797 3,531,797
Corporate 1,767,217 31,114,927 32,882,204
1,767,277 53,646,439 55,413,716

As at 31 December 2014
North America Lurope Total
EUR EUR EUR
Govermment “ 21,110 21,110
Monetary financial institutions - 0,249,382 9,249,382
Corporate 4 407,725 33,558 470 37,966,195
Securitisation - 1,227,536 1,227,536
4,407 725 44 (456,498 18, 464,223

Assef quality

The Bank assigns visk weights to the credit risk of the invesunents portfolio in accordance with the rating
assigned by Firch, Moody’s and S&P, all of which are cligible External Credit Assessment Institutions
(ECAILg), in accordance with article 133 of the Capital Requirements Regulation.

The credit quality of the securities as determined by the nominated ECAls is as follows:

2015 2014

EUR EUR
AAA 876,055 “
A “ 1,227,036
BEEB 11,959,058 904 G805
BB+ ar lower 32,251,768 35,257,729
Total 45,086,881 38,479,954

Cash at bank is placed with reliable financial institutions rated BBB and higher,
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Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet comminments
associsted with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset
quickly at close to its fair value,

Ligquidity risk management

The Bank monitors and manages this risk by maintaining sufficient cash and, where possible, financial
assets for which there is a liquid market and that are readily saleable to meet liquidity needs. The Bank is
exposed to calls on its available cash resources from maturing term deposits and withdrawals from
savings. In order to ensure that maturing funds are always available (o meet expected demand for cash, the
Board scts parameters within which maturitics of assets and liabilitics may be mismatched, Unmatched
positions polentially enhance profitability, but also increase the risk of losses. 1n addition, the Bank
manages its risk to a shortage of funds by monitoring forecast and actual cash [ows, by monitoring the
availability of raising {funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments and by holding
financial assets which are expected to generate cash inflows that will be available to meet cash outflows
on liabititics.

The Bank uses four key liquidity measures to monitor its liquidity risk, namely the ratio of liquid assets o
deposit liabilities, the maturity [adder which comprises projected cash tlows, the Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(‘LCR’), the Net Stable Funding Ratio ('NGFR’) and an internal cash fow medel, which is 2 minimum
bufler of liquid assets set based on expected gross outllows.

As at both 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank's Hauidity ratios were significantly above
the regulalory Hauidity ratios of 30% prescribed by Banking Rule 3 and 60% peescribed by the Capital
Requirements Regulation,

The table below analyses the Bank’s financial Habitities Into relevant maturity groupings, based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Lass
Carrying Gross than 1.3 3 months -
amount outfiow 1 month manths ~§ year YERIS
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

At 31 December 2015
Deposits from customers  (48,906,650) (49,485 911) (3,788,882}  (3,140,%44)  (10,254,850)  (32,311,235)

At 31 December 2014
Deposiis from customers (38,430,577 {38,847 4971)  (2,520,321)  (1,708,554) (6,196,407)  (28,422,208)

Assets available to meet these fabililies, and to cover outstanding conmmitments, include cash at bank and
marketable securities.
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25, Financial risk management (continued)
25.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below analyses the principal assets and Habilities that are recognised in the staterment of financial

position into relevant maturity groupings, based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to their
sontractual maturity date.

l.ess
than 3 3 months 1-5 6+
months -1 year years years Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Asg at 31 December 2015
Assets
Financial assets at {air value
through profit or loss 3,832,700 - - - 3,832,700
Available-for-zale investments « B 2,127 946 5,816,641 8,644 587
Held-to-maturity investmeants - - 12,384,324 4,765,282 17,149,606
Loans and receivables - - 3,433,621 3,023,954 6,457,575
Cash and ¢ash equivalenis 18,698 4812 - - - 18,698,812
Accrued income 494,301 . - - 494,301
Other a=ssets 136,135 - - - 136,135
23,161,948 - 18 545 8481 13,705 &8%7 55,413,716
Az at 31 Decembar 2014
Aszets
Financial asaetes at feir value
thraugh profit or loss - - - 1,227 636 1,227 536
Avallable-for-sale investments “ - 1,263,808 3,685 031 4,849 739
Held-to-maturity invesiments n - 10,950,498 13,078,165 24 058,663
Loans snd recelvablas - - - 3,499,640 &, 734,376 8,234,016
Cash and cash equivalents 9270482 - - - 8 270,492
Arcrued income 564,104 - - - H64 104
Other assets 148,673 - - . 149,673
B,984,264 - 158,753,946 AR726,008 48,464 223
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25,

Financial visk management (continued)

Market risk

Market risk 15 the rigk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreipn exchange
rates and credit spreads (not celating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit standing) will affect the
Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of marlet risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
oplimising the retuen on risk.

Cxposure to interest rate risk

The Bank’s oparations ave subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the exten! that interest-eaming
asscts and interest-bearing labilities mature or reprice at different times or in different amounts, Risk
management activities are aimed at oplimising net interest income, given markel interest rate levels
consistent with the Bank’s business strategies.

Interest rate risk is managed prineipally through monitoring, interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved
limits for re-pricing hands.

The following table sets out the carrying amount, by reference to the carlier of the next contractual interest
rate re-pricing date and maturity of interest bearing financial instruments:

[ess
than 3 months 1-5 5+
3 months -1 year years years Others Totai
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
At 31 December 2615
Financial assets ai fair vafue
through profit or [oss - 1,740,801 397,722 1,604,177 -« 3,832,700
Available-for-sale investmanie 1,285,123 . 1,453,918 6,005,546 . 8,644,587
Loans and receivables 6,457 575 - - - - BA57.575
Held-to-maturity investments 2,010,024 3,378,963 6,981,813 4,778,006 - 17,148,608
“ - - - 18,698,812

Cash and cash equivalents 18,698,812

Acured incema - - - 494,301 494,301

" 136,135 136,135

Othaer assets - " -
28,451 534 8.118,764 BAI3 453 12,378,520 §30,436 58,413 716
Lizbitities
Amounts owed to customers 6,819,006 10,190,315 3,887,328 - - 48,906,650
6,815,006 10,190,315 31,897,329 . - 48,306,650
Gap 21,832,527 {5,070,651) (23,063,876) 12,378,529 630,436
Cumulative gap 21,632,527 16,561,977 (6,501 ,853) 5 B76,630 6,507 066
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25, Financial risk management (continued)
25.4 Wiarket risk (continued)

Exposure to interest rate risk (continued)

Less
than 3 months 1.5 S
3 months -1 year years years Others Tortal
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
At 31 December 2014
Financial assels at fair value
through profit or loss “ . - 1,227,536 - 1,227 536
Available-for-sale invesiments 1,146,890 " 1,543,186 2,259,553 - 4,940 739
Loans a#nd receivables 8,234,016 - - - 82340186
Hatd-to-maturity investments 1,002,187 5,000,973 11,133,433 8,032 060 - 24,088,683
Cash and cash equivalents 9,270,492 - - - - 9,270,492
Accrued income . n . - 564,104 564,104
Other asgsets - - - - 149,673 149,673
19,653,685 5,000,573 12676629 10,419,148 13777 48,464,223
Lisbsilitigs
Amounts owed to customers 1,785,517 6436613 30,238,147 - - 38430277
1,766,517 6,436,613 30,238,147 " ~ 38430277
Gap 17,898,178 (1.435,640) (17,561,518) 10,415,149 713,777
Cumulative gap 17,898,178 16,462,538  (1,098,980) 9,320,169 10,033,046

At the end of the reporling period the interest rate profile of the Bank’s interest bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

Rate instruments

Fixed Variable
EUR EUR
As at M December 2015
Interest earning assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,832,700 -
Available-for-sale invesiments 7,359,464 1,285,123
Held-to-maturity investments 15,139,682 2,010,024
L.oans and receivables - 6,457,575
Cash and cash equivalents 9,696,399 5,002,413
36,028,145 18,755,135
Interest bearing liabilities
Amounts owed to customers 47,492,597 1,414,063
47,492 547 1,414,053
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25,

254

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk {continued)

Rate instruments

Fixed Variable
EUR EUR
As at 31 December 2014
Interest earning assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 1,227,536
Available-for-sale investments 3,802,745 1,146,980
Held-to-maturity investmemns 24,068,663 -
Lozans and receivables 8,234 016 -
{Cash and cash equivalents 9,270,492 -
45 375920 2,374,526
Interest bearing labilities
Amounts owed to customers 35,674,712 1,755,865
36,674,712 1,755 865

For financial instruments held or issucd, the Bank has used a sensitivity analysis technique that measures
the change in the fair value and cash Hows ol the Bank’s financial instruments at the end of the repording
period for hypothetical changes in the relevant market risk variables. The sensitivily due Lo changes in the
relovant risk variables is set out below. The atnounts generated from the sensitivity analysis are forward-
tooking estimates of market risk assuming certain market conditions. Actual resulls in the future may
differ materially from those projected resulis due to the inherent uncertainty of global financial markets.
The sensitivity analysis 15 for illustrative purposes only, as in practice market rates rarcly change in
isolation and are likely to be interdependent.

The net effect of an immediate 200 basts point increase/decrease in yields at the end of 2015 was
estimated at EURII7Z.I33 (EURISG,397 at the end of 2014).

LExposure to forcign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Board of Direclors sets limits on the level of exposure
by currency and in total.

The Bank was not materfatly exposed io currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies at the end
of the reporting period.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insttument will Auctuate because
af changes in market prices (olber than these arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrament or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
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25.6

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising [rom a wide variety ol causes associated with
the Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit,
mmarket and Hquidity risk such as those arising from lepal and regulatory requirements and gencrally
accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Bank’s operations.

The Bank’s objective is o manage operational risk 5o as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that

restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls 10 address operational risk
is assigned to senior management.  This responsibility is suppoded by the development of overall
standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of
trangactions

- requirernents for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions

- compliance with reeulatory and other legal requirements

- documentation of controls and procedures

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of controls
and procedures to address the risks identiffed

- requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action

- developiment of contingency plans
training and professional development

- ethical and business standards

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Capital risk management

The Bank's objectives when managing capilal, which is a broader concepl than the ‘equity’ on the
statement of financial position, are:

« To comply with the capital requirements set by the Malts Financial Services Authority (MFSA) with
respect to the Bank’s operations;

» To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a poing concem so that it can provide returns for
sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Accordingly, the purpose of the Iank’s capital management is essentially that of ensuring efficient use of
capital taking cognisance of the Bank's risk appetite and profile as well as its objectives for business
developmeni.

The Bank is subject to externally imposed capital requirements only in respect of the Bank’s activities as a
credit institution.
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Financial risk management (confinued)
Capital risk management (continued)

On ! January 2014 the Capital Requirements Directive (CRD)} and the Capital Requirements Regulations
(CRR) came into effect, constituting the European implementation of the Basel capital and liquidity
agreement of 2010. The Bank has made necessary changes in order to ensure that it is compliant with
Pillar | capital requirements set by the CRR. Other material risks are also allocated capital as part of the
Internal Capital Adequacy Process (ICAAD) embedded in the Pillar Il process. This process helps to
measure with greater risk sensitivity the amount of regulatory capital which the Bank requires to cover
risks asswmed in the course ol its business, including risks not covered in Pillar I

Dwuring the financial year, the Bank has monitored adequacy of its capital and gave strategic direction on
the most efficient use of capital,

During the year under review and during the comparative period, the Bank has complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements.

The following table shows the components and basis of calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy ratios:

2015 2014
EUR EUR
Original own funds
Qrdinary shares 10,350,000 9,500,000
Accumulated losses (2,994,339) {1,602, 929)
Depositor Compensation Scheme (310,048) (129,536)
Available-for-sale reserve (181,675) (92.908)
Deductions
Intangible assets {217,768) (203,564)
Deferred tax assets that rely on future
profitability and do not arise from temparary differences (1,003,045) (894,160)
Other fransitional adjustments 700,622 779,538
Total Tier 1 Capital 6,343,747 7,356,441
Total own funds 6,343,747 7,356,441

Minimum capital requirements are  computed for  credit, markel and operational  risks.
The MFSA requires a bank to maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets and
instrurments {the capital requirements ratio) at or above the prescribed minimum of 8%. The capital
requirements ratio expresses own funds as a proportion of risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items
in relation to credit risk together with notional risk-weighted assets in respect of operational risk and
market risk.
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26.

Financial risk management {continved)
Capital risk management (continued)

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk weights classified according to the
nature of - and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with — each asset and
counterparty, taking into sccount any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar reatment is adopted for
olf-balance sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential
logses. Risk-weighted assets are measured using the “standardised approach’ for credit risk with risk
weights being assigned to assets and off-balance sheet items according to their asset class and credit
agsesgment. For the determination of credit assessments, independent rating agencies are nominated ag
required.

Total risk-weighted assets are determined by multiplying the capital requirements for market risk and
operational risk by 12.5 (Le. the reciprocal of the minimum capital ratio of & per cent) and adding the
resulting figures 1o the sum of risk-weighted assets for credit risk.

The capital adequacy ratio at 31 December 2013 stood at 13.27% (14.3% at 31 December 2014),

Contingent liability

The Bank has received a fitigation claim from a former member of stall refating to alleged unfair
dismissal. The Bank is of the opinton this claim will not succeed but in the untikely event of the decision
poing against the Bank, any award is not thought to be material.
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1.1

1.2

1.3

Rislk managemeni
Overview of risk disclosures

These disclosures have been prepared in accordance with the Pillar 3 quantilative and qualitative
disclosure requirements as governed by Banking Rule 07: Publication of Annual report and Audited
Financial Statements of Credit (nstitutions BRAQ7/2014 authorised under the Banking Act, 1994, issued by
the Malta Financial Services Authority, These disclosures will be published by the Bank on an annual
basis as part o the Annual Report,

As per banking regulations, this report is not subject to an external audit, except w the extent that any
disclosures are equivalent to those made in the Financial Statetments which adhere to International
Financial Reporting Standards ([FRS) as adopted by the EU. The Bank is satisfied that intemal
verification procedures ensure that these Additional Regulalory Disclosures are presented fairly.

In accordance with the Bank’s Pillar 3 disclosure policy which sets out the disclosure process, verification
and frequency, this report is cumently published once a year.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's risk
management framework. The Bank has in place a Credit and Risk Comumittee that is responsibie for
developing and mounitoring the Bank’s risk management policies in #ts specific areas. The Cradit and Risk
Commiltee met 12 times in 2015, The aim of risk management is o create value for shareholders by
supporting the Bank in achieving its goals and objectives, and ultimately ensuring that the risks are
commensurate with the rewards.

The Bank considers risk management a core competency that helps produce consistentiy high returns for
its various stakeholders, The Bank’s business involves taking on risks in a targeted manner and managing
them professionally. The Bank aims to manage all major types of risk by applying methods that meet best
practice. The Bank considers it important to have a clear distribution of responsibilities within risk
management. One of the main tasks of the Bank’s sxecutive management is to set the framework for this
area. The core functions of the Bank’s risk management are to identify all key risks for the Bank, measure
these risks, manage the risk positions and determine capital allocations. The Bank regularly reviews its
risk management policies and systemns to reflect changes in markets, products and best market practice.

Key risk components

The Bank's Roard of Dircctors is empowered to set out the averall risk policies and limits for all material
risk types. The Board also decides on the general principles for managing and monitoring risks.
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1.3

Risk management {(continned)
Key risk components (continued)

To ensure coherence between the Bank’s strategic considerations vegarding risk-taking and day-to-day
decisions, from time to time, the Bank estabiishes risk appetite as a strategic tool. Risk appetite is the
maximum risk that the Bank is willing to assume 10 meet business targets. The Bank's visk appetite is set
in a process based on a thorough analysis of its current risk profite. The Bank identifics a number of key
risk components and for ezch, determines a target thal represents the Bank's perception of the component
in question.

The Bank has exposure 1o the {ollowing risks from its use of financial instruments;

- Credit risk: Credit risk stems from the possible non-prompt repayment or nen-payment of existing and
contingent obligations by the Bank’s counterpartics, resulting in the loss of equity and profit, as well as
rigk that deterioration in the financial condition of 2 borrower will cause the asset value to decrease or be
extinguished. Country risk and settlement risk are included in this eategory. Country risk refers to the risk
of losses arising from economic or political changes that affect the country from which the asset
originates, Settlement risk refers to the risk of losses through failure of the counterparty to settle
outstanding dues on the settlement date owing to bankruptcy or other causes.

- Market risk: Market risk is the risk of reductions in earnings and/or asset values arising from unexpected
changes in financial prices, inciuding inmerest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. [t is managed by a
variety of different techniques.

- Liguidity risk: Liquidity risk may be divided into two sub-categories:

{1) Market (product) liquidity risk: Risk of losses avising from difficully in sceessing a product or market
at the required time, price and amount.

(2) Funding liquidity risk: Risk of losses arising [rom a timing mismatch between investing, placements
and fund raising activities resulting in obligations missing the settlement date or satisfied at higher than
normal rates.

« Operational risk: Risk of damage resulting from the lack of skilful management or good governance
within the Bank and the inadequacy of proper control, which might involve internal operations, personnet,
the systern or external occurrences that in turn affect the income and capital funds of fnancial institutions.
The Bank has adopted an operational tisk management framework and procedures, which provide for the
identification, agsessment, management, monitoring and reporting of the Bank’s operational risks.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank’s customers, clients ar market

counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual oldigations to the Bank. Credit risk arises from deposits with
other banks and on its securities portfolio.
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Credit risk {continued)

‘the Credit and Risk Committee is responsible for approving all acquisitions ol securities and placements
of deposits with banks. In accordance with policies set by the 3oard decisions are based on the Bank’s
insight into the counterparty’s financial position which is regularly monitored and reporied o the Board,

In order to minimise the credit risk undertaken, counterparty eredit limits are defined, which consider a
counterparty’s creditworthiness, Ih order to examine a counterparty’s creditworthiness, country risk,
quantitative and qualitative characteristics, as well as the industry sector in which the counterparty
operates are considered.

Concentration risk arises as a resubt of the concentration of exposures within the same category, whether it
is geographical locations, industry sector or counterpacty type. These risks are managed through adherence
to Board approved investment criteria. As at 31 December 2015, no securities were deemed to be
prohibited large exposures.

Couniry risk

The Bank runs the risk of loss of funds due to the possible political, economic and other events in a
particular country where funds have been placed or invested with several counterparties. Countries are
assessed according to their size, economic data and prospects and their credit ratings from international
rating agencies, Existing country credit risk exposures are monitored and reviewed pertodically.

Exposures analysed by locafion

North America Furope Total

EUR EUR EUR

General government - 18,999,718 18,999,715
Monetary financial institutions - 3,831,797 3,531,797
Corporate 1,767,277 31,114,927 32,882,204
1,767,277 53,646,439 §56,413,716
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2. Credil risk (continned)

Exposures anafvsed by residual maiurity

Less
than 1 1-5 5+
year YEears years Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
General government 18,899,715 - - 18,989 7156
Cradit institutions 3,831,797 - - 3,531,797
Corporates 630,436 18,545,891 13,705 B77 32,882,204
Total 23,161,948 18,545,891 13,705,877 55,413,716
Exposures analysed by sector
Monetary
General financial
goverment institutions Corporates Other Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
General governments 18,999 715 - - 18,899,715
Credit institutions - 3,531,797 - 3,531,797
Corporates - - 328827204 32,882,204
Total 18,999,715 3,831,797 312,882,204 55,413,716

Asset greality

The Bank assigns risk weights to the credit risk ol the investments portfolio in accordance with the rating
assigned by Fitch, Moody's and S&P, alt of which are MFSA eligible External Credit Assessment
Institutions (ECALs), in accordance with article 3.9 of Appendix 2 » Section 1.4 Credit Risk Siandardised

Approach - BR 04.
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2. Credit risk (continued)
The credit guality of the securitics ag determined by the pominated BECAls is as follows:
Credlit Credit Credh Credit Gradit Cradit
Quality Quality Quality Quality Quality Stop Quality Unrated Total
Step i Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 5 Step &
LR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR ELIR EUR
General #7645 18,115,585 . 12,009, 71
governmants ! o A - - T
: G 5
Cratit
institutions - - 353,787 3,531,797
Corporates ) 283,386 1 B.1M.13 12,362,756 1.503.1? 530,585 32,332,22
Total §76.05 ] 31,438 84 18,103,15 12,362,786 1,503,19 430,686 BE 413,74
5 3 0 T [
3 Market risk

Market tisk for the Bank consists of three elements:

- Iterest rate risk, which is the risk of losses through changes in interest rates;

- Currency risk, which is the risk of losses on the Bank's positions in foreign currency through changes in
exchange rates; and

- Price risk which is the risk that the fair value or fatre cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those chunges are caused by lactors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
[actors affecting ull simifar [inancial instruments traded in the market,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument witl flectuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The Bank’s operations are subject to the risk of mierest rate fluctuations to the extent that
interest-earning asseis and interest-bearing {iabilities mature or reprice at different times or at different
amounts. The Bank places deposits with Banks at both fixed and floating rates and for varying maturity
periods. This risk is manaped through the matching of the interest reselting dates on assets and liabilities
as much as it Is practicable, However, the Bank seeks to manage its nct interest spread, after considering
the cost of capital by investing funds in a portfolio of securities with a longer tenure than the liabilities
(therefore carrying a negative maturity gap position).
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3 Market risk (continued)
3.1 Ioterest rate risk (continued)

The net effect of an {mmediate 200 basis point increase/decrease in yields al the end of 2013 was
estimated at £URI 17,333 (EURI&6,397 ut the end of 2014).

At the end of the reporting period the interest rate profile of the Bank’s inlerast bearing financial
instruments is as follows:

Rate instrumenis

Fixed Variable
EUR EUR
As at 31 December 2015
Interest earning assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or joss 3,832,700 -
Avaitable-for-sale investments 7,359,464 1,2856123
Held-to-maturity investments 15,139,582 2,010,024
L.oans and receivables - 6,457,575
Cash and cash equivalents 18,698,812 -
45,030,558 8,752,722
Interest bearing liabilitios
Armounts owed to customers 47 492,597 1,414,053
47,492,597 1,414,053

The following lable sets out the carrying amount, by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest
rate repricing date and maturity:

l.ess
than 3 months 1-5 5+
manths -1 yaar yoars years Tatal
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
At 31 December 2015
Financizl assets at fair value
through profit or loss “ 1,740,801 397,722 1,694,177 3,832.700
Available-for-sale investments 1,285,123 " 1,453,918 5,805,646 8,644 687
Loans and receivables 6,457,575 - - - 6,457,575
Held-to-maturlty investments 2,010,024 3,578,963 6,981,843 4,778,806 17,149 606
Cash and cash equivalents 18,698,812 . “ B 18,698,812
Accrued income 494,301 n - . 494,301
Other assets 138,138 - - - 136,135
29,081,970 5,119,764 8,633,453 12,378,529 55,413,716
Liambilities
Amounts owed (o customers €,5819,008 10,190,315 31,897,329 - 48,908 650
6,819,008 10,190,315 31,897,329 - 48,906,650
Gap 22,262,963 (5,070,551) {23,063,876) 12,378,529
GCumulative gap 21,622,527 17,192,413 (5,871,463) 6,607,066
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L]

Muarlket risk {continued)

Currency risk

Currency risl s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange vates, The Board of Directors sets limits on the level of exposure
by currency and in fotal.

The Bank was not exposed to significant cuwrrency tisk through trangaetions in foreign currencies at the
end of the reporting period.

Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk of losses due Lo

- the Bank's funding costs increasing disproportionately;

- lack of funding prevents the Bank from establishing new business; and

- lack of funding will ultimately prevent the Bank [romn meeting its obligations.

Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close ta its fair value, The
objective of the Bank’s liquidity and funding management is to ensure that ail foreseeable funding
conumitments and deposit withdrawals can be met when due. It is the Bank's objective to maintain a
diversified and stable funding base with the objective of enabling the Bank o respond quickly and
smoathly to unforeseen liquidity requirements.

The Bank manages this risk by ensuring that its assets and liabilitles are matched in terms of maturities as
mitch as is practicable, The Bank holds significant Hauid assets in the form of cash and bonds. In order to
ehsure that maturing funds are always available to meet unexpected demand for cash, the Roard sets
parameters within which maturities of assets and Habilities may be mismatched, Unmatched positions
potentially enhance prolitability, but also increase the risk of losses. The Board of Directors monitors the
Bank's Liguidity Gap analysis on a monthly basis. In addition, it maintains an on-going oversight of
forecast and actual cash flows, by monitoring the availability of funds to meet conunitments associated
with financial insiruments.
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4. Liguidity risk (continucd)

The table below analyses Bank financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings, based on the
remaining period al the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

Less
than 3 3 months 1-5 5
maonths -1 year years Years Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 December 2015
Assets
Finanuial assets &t fair vaiue
through profit or loss 3,832,700 - - - 3,832,700
Available-for-zaie invesiments - - 2,727,946 5,918,641 8,644,587
Held-to-maturity invesiments . “ 12,384,324 4,765 282 17,149,608
Losns and recelvables - - 3,433,621 3,023,954 6,457 675
Cash and cash aguivalents 18,698,812 - - - 18,698,842
Accruad income 494,301 - - - 484,301
Other assets 136,135 . - . 136,135
23,161,948 - 18,545,891 13,705,877 55,413,716
Lishilities
Armounts owed to custorners 6,819,006 10,190,315 21,897,329 - 48,906,650

Assets available to meet these liabilities, and to cover outstanding commitments, include cash at bank and
miarketable scewritics.

5, Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect losses arising from a variety of causes associated with the
Bank’s processes such as:

- deficient or erroneous internal procedures

- human or system errors

- external events, including legal events

« intemal and external fraud

- employment practices and workplace safety
- clients, products and business practices

« damage to physical assets

- business disruption and system Failures

-~ execution, delivery and process management

Operational risk is thus ofien associated with specific and one-oft events, such as failure to observe
business or working procedures, defects or breakdowns ol the tochnical infrastructure, eriminal acts, fire
and storm damage or litigation.

Operational risks are, thus, non-financial risks. Operational risk management relies on a ftamework of
policies overseen by the Board of Directors.
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6.

6.1

Operational risk {continued)

The Bank's objective is to manage opetational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that
restrict initiative and creativity while maintaining risk taking within a tolerable lumit,

A finaneial measurement of this risk is arrived at by the Bank for the purpose of allocating risk capital
using the Basic Indicator Approach. The capital requirement for operational risk under this method was
calculated at EUR30, 135

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, whichk is a broader concept than the ‘equity” on the
consolidated statement of financial position, are;

- To comply with the capital requiremnents set by the Malta Financial Services Authority (MFSA)Y with
respect to the Bank's operations;

- To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benelits for other stakeholders; and

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Accordingly, the purpose of the Bank’s capital management is essentially that of ensuring efficient use of
capilal taking cognisance of the Bank’s risk appetite and profile as well as its objectives for business
development.

Capital managetent
Capital adequacy

The Bank is subject to externally imposed capital requirements only in respect of the Bank's activities as a
credit institution.

On | January 2014 the Capital Requirements Dircetive (CRI2) and the Capital Requirements Regulations
{CRR) canme into effect, constituting the Buropean bmplemeatation of the Basel capital and liquidity
agrecment of 2010, The Bank has made necessary changes in order to cnsure that it is compliant with
Piflar t capital requirements set by the CRR. Other material risks ave also allocated capital as part of the
Internal Capital Adequacy Process (ICAAP) embedded in the Pillar 11 process. This process helps 1o
measure with greater risk sensitivity the amount of regulatory capital which the Bank requires to cover
risks assumed in the course of its business, including risks not covered in Pillar |
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6.1

Capital managemeut {continued

Capital adeguacy (continued)

The following 1y an analysis of the Bank’s capital base in accordance with the CRID's requirements:

2015 2014
EUR EUR
Original own funds
Crdinary shares 10,350,000 9,500,000
Accumulated losses (2,994,339) (1,602,829}
Depositor compensation reserve (310,048) (129,536)
Available-for-sale reserve {181,675) (92,909)
Deductions
Intangible assets (217,768) (203,564)
Deferred tax assets that rely on future
profitability and do not arise from temporary differences {1,003,045) {894,160)
Other transitional adjustments 700,622 779,539
Total tier 1 capital 6,343,747 7,366 441
Total own funds 6,343,747 7,358,441

Mirimum capital requirements are computed for credit, market and operational tisks, The MFSA requires
a bank to maintain a ratic of total regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets and instruments (the capital
requirements ratio) at or above the prescribed minimum of 8%. The capital requirements ratio expresses
own funds as a proportion of rigk-weighted assets and ofl-balance sheet ttems in relation to credit risk
together with notionai risk-weighted assets in respect of operational risk and market risk.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk weights clagsified according to the
nature of - and reflecling an estimale of credit, market and other risks assoclated with - each asset and
counterparty, laking inlo aceount any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment i3 adopted for
off-balance sheel exposures, with some adjustinents to reflect the more conlingent nature of the potential
losses. Risk-weighied assets are measured using the “standardised approach’ for credit risk with risk
weights being assipned to assets and off-balance sheet items according to their asset class and credit
assessment. For the determination of credit assessments, independent rating agencies are nominated as
required.

Total risk-weiphted assets are determined by multiplying the capital requirements for market risk and
operational risk by 2.3 (1.e. the reciprocal of the minimum capital ratio of 8 per cent) and adding the
resulting figures to the sum of risk-weighted assets for credit risk.
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6. Capital management (continued)
6.1 Capital adeguacy (conlinued)
Carrying Risk Weighted Capital
Amount Amount Requirement
EUR EUR EUR
Central governments 18,999,715 . -
Credit institutions 3,221,749 644,350 51,548
Corporates 32,251,768 39,184, 869 3,134,790
Other iterms 2,330,697 1,322 275 141,418
Total credit risk 56,803,929 41,151,494 3,327,756
Foreign exchange risk 16,934 1,355
Operational risk 376,689 o30S
Total 41,545,116 3,359,246
Own funds 6,343,747

Capital adequacy ratio

15.27%

6.2

Internai capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP)

The Bank developed a comprehensive Intemnal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (“TCAAP™), as part
of its 2012 plan to enhance its risk management process, in accordunce with Banking Rule 12 "The
Supervisary Review Process’ (BRI12). As part of this process, the Bank is required to assess its overall
capital adequacy in relation to risk proftle and a strategy for maintaining capital levels,

The purpose of the LCAAP is to formalise the process by which the Bank performs ongoing assessment of
its risks, mitigates those risks and determines how much current and futire capital is necessary having
considered other mitigating factors,

The ICAAP has therefore been adopted by both the Board of Directors and the Bank’s senior management
to ensure that there is adequate identification, meagsurement and monitoring of the Bank™s risks and that
adequate internal capital is held by the Bank in relation to its risk profile. Furthermore, the Bank has
utilised this [CAAP Lo agsess its current risk management practices and to determine those practices which
need Lo be develaped further.

For this ICAAP, the Bank adopted a minimum capital requirement approach, using the audited figures as
at 31 December 2014 as the benchimark vear, which is based on Pillar [ capital requirements together with
the assessment of extra capital proportionate to Pillar 1 risks and supplementary stress tesiing to assess the
impact of a possible prolonged economic recession on the Bank.
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Capital management {continued)
Internal capital adequacy assessment process (1CAAP) (continued)

The HCAAP process was lad by the Bank's Directors, and was challenged by the internal auditors. The
final doecument was spproved by the Bank's Board of Directors in June 2015 and presented to the MFSA,

The results show the Bank comfortably meeting its capital and liquidity tarsets over the regulatory
minimum even in times of siress.

Remuneration Policy

The Bank’s Remuneration Policy is based on the following principles:

. Clarity and transparency for all stakeholders;

» Adherence to the Bank's long-term objectives with reference to the refevant level of risk involved
in attaining these goals;

) Maintaining a reasonable proportion between the fixed and variable part of remuneration package;

- The review of the annual staff remuneration considers the Bank’'s results, performance, as well as

local marketl trends in the financial sector and individual performance in view of the risk level
involved in the long termy

. Market data 15 considered and target remuneration brackets per job position are set in view to level
of expertise, years in the position, attraction of talent and high perlormers.
» European Banking Authority Guidelines on sotnd remuneration policies under Articles 74(3) and

75(2) of Directive 2013/36/EU and disclosures under Article 450 of Regulation (EL) No 375/2013.
Total remuneration payable to senior management, which includes the CEO and three other beneficiartes,
in 2015 was EUR420,464 of which EUR3ISE 964 was fixed and EU/R3Z 500 varigble. No variable
remuneration awarded during the year was deferred.

FCM has appointed a Remuneration Committee whose objective is to enswre that all remuneration,
including benefits and variable remuneration, follows legal requirements and market rates. All members
appointed on the Remuneration Committee are not management members except for the CEQ, whose
membership is ex-officio. The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice a year and minutes are
formally kept by the Company Secretary. The Remuneration Commitiee undertakes periodic studies into
compensation market rates, including variable rates, and other benefus, All variable compensation for
senior management is submitied to be authorised by the Remuneration Commitiee. The Remuneration
Policy is subject to the Remuneration Cominittea’s scrutiny and authorisation,
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7

Remuneration Policy (continued)

FCM will determine the employee’s remuneration and benelits by reference to market rates for specific
roles and FCM'’s own needs at a partticnlar time. Remunperation for senior management staff s
recommended to the Remuneration Committee for authorisation. FCM Incentive schemes are tied to the
performance evaluation system and will always be subject to the Remuneration Committee’s approval on
the basis of a structured and measured approach, which must be tied to the adoption of sound operating
procedures and risk practices. FCM will not implement incentive schemes which will encourage its
management and employees to commit FCM to take on risks which in the view of the Board of Directors
are not in line with the visk profile of FOM, FCM will also not implement incentive schemes which will
constrain or endanger its financial position or capital base.

%]

Variable remuneration will not encourage excessive risk-taking bevond the tolerated risk level of
FCM

Variable remuneration will be in line with business strategy, long-lerm bank objectives and the
avoidunce of conflicts of interest.

The implementation of basic remuneration policy (salaries) is subject to the Remuneration
Commiltee’s authorisation both at contracting siage and at periodic increase stage. The
implementation of the varfable remuneration policy is subject to the Remuneration Commitiee’s
scrptiny and authorization both at initial stapges, when drawing up performance targetls and
measures, and at recommendation stage, prior 10 decisions made on vartable renmuneration levels.

Staff in control functions are independent from the business uniis they oversee and are
remunerated according to independent market rates and according to the targets and measures
included in their performance evaluation forms.

Variable remuneration shall be subject to FCM's overall performance, to the achicvement of targets
previously established, which targets include behavioural objectives and to the following considerations:

a2

FCM does not offer guaranteed variable remuneration unless the latter is part of the initial
contracting process, which would only happen as a one-off factor during the first year of
empioyment.

The total variable remuneration value shall not in any manner constrain FCMs capital base,

The total level of variable remuneration shall not exceed 25% of the level ol basic salary, unless
specifically authorised by the Board of Directors in exceptional circumstances. In the case of the
latter, such a decision would nol constrain FCM’s capilal base and would not be higher than 50%
of basic salary.

Variable remuneration of the most senior Bank officers may be set in & multi-year framework
which will take into consideration FCM’s longer-term performance and its underlying business
gycle. This may include variable remuneration being settled over a period of years corresponding
to FCM s business eycle.
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12

Recruitment policy

FCM i3 an equal opportunity employer and will not discriminate between candidates on grounds of race,
religion, sex, status and disability. FOM will strive to identify candidates who are best suited to the post on
the basis of their academic achievements, work experience and career history,

laternal audit

The Rank outsources its Internal Audit function o an independent professionat services firm. The Internal
Auditors support the Board of Directors by independently assessing the effectiveness of the Bank's system
of internal controls and compliance of the Bank with statutory, legal and regulatory requirements, All key
issues raised by Internal Audit are communicated to the management responsible via formal audit reports.
The Audit Committee and Board of Directors are informed of findings and actions being taken to

implement improvements.

The Internal Auditors have unrestricted access to all accounts, books and records and are provided with all
information and data needed to fulfil their duties. Coordination and close cooperation with the external
auditors plays an important role to enhance the effictency of Internal Audit's work.

Encumbered and unencumbered sssots

Carrying amount

of ancumbered
assets
EUR

At 31 December 2015
Equity .
Debt securities -
Oiher assats 76,006

376,006

Return on assets

Fair vatue of
sncumbearsd
assels

FEUR

376,006

376,006

Carrying armount Fair vatue of

ofunaencombered unencumbered
assets assels

EUR EUR

45,086,381 44,978,075
11,341,042 11,341,042
56,427,023 66,319,117

The return on assets as at 31 December 2015 is -2.45%. This is calculated as loss after tax divided by total

ussels,
Leverage

EUR
Total Assets 56,803,929
lL.everage ratio exposure 56,803 829
Tier 1 Capital §,343,747
Total on-balance sheet exposures 56,803,829
Total Exposures 58,803,929
End of quarter leverage ratio 11%
Leverage ratio (average of the monthly leverage ratios aver the quarter) 1%
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& Yonr Summary

Stutempnt of comprebensive incoe Pariod from

3
Your onled Year ended Yeur ernded Yeas ended 40 July 20 tr::
3
3t Decemlrer [aga ml:-&ir 31 Recumber 31 Pecember 3 Decembar
2015 2004 2013 2012 2011
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Interest income 1962433 1,428,583 575,600 4,522 119,723
Interost expense (1,620,346} (1,174,140 (332,083 (25,993 (1,070
Mot interest incone 361,789 255,434 IEENDE 338,329 {18,614
Fae and commissian expense (23,242} (17.626) (14,162 (3.083) (2.048)
Net troding pains/(loxses) 65,109 4,198 273,994 173,949 (S.841)
Other incesne 5,566 17,300 145628 76878
Impaimment of aggets {142,547} - - - R
Cpernting income 226,635 259 434 54 078 495, 1413 24,752
Administrative expense (1.409,831) (1,041,363) {683.511) (416,331) {161,038y
Fmgsloyee conpensation and beneits {672,960) (54.K81) {269 068} Lo (aawad)y {17 Wéay
Loss before incowne tix {1, 436,137) (1,577,008} (603,501 {276,569} (184, 142)
Tncome tax credit 64,747 471,338 212,003 08,640 800
Loss far the year/period (1,397,411 (03,6707 (391.498) (179,610 {126,132)
Cthier comprehensive income
Iteme that may be reclagsitien subscquently to
profit or [oss:
Available-larsale investmenls,
« change i i vatue {319,150) (250417 207 $3.203 -
-impairment of avaidable fur sale invesiments 182,587 - - - -
< sfederred 1ax thetenn 47,797 #7667 (18311) (19,528) -
{'Jllu:rc:v_mprclx«.:nsivc (toes) income for the (88,766 162,910 34 006 35,595 .
year/pesiod nes of tax . . .
Total comprehensive boss for the venr/period {1 A3LTT6) (1,068 480) {357.497) (143,73:0) €126,13)
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7 Year Sumnuiry

Statement of firuncind position

2015 2014 2043 2002 2011

FUR EUR EUR EUR BUR
Asgels
st anel cash equivalenls 18,694,812 8,270,402 4,978,083 429,387 4,528,210
il A Py
Fingncial assets at fic value thraugh profic or loss 3,452,700 1229536 509,743 937.081 2362 713
Ivesiments 3251768 3R AR 13,843 385 7.033,367
Intangible asseis 2T T6R 203,364 134,813 14,300 -
Property. plant and equipiment 35,169 57402 65,300 KO.R5% 1006
Deferred tax 1,003,045 LA 129315 133,621 3010
Other assers 138,138 149,673 64,617 18,895 2497
Prepayments and acerued ineome 628,532 585,367 93,492 2053270 39582
Tatal assets 56,403,919 49,635 0169 25055710 2264739 6, 993 U5Y
Linbilttics
Adnouats owed to customners 44,906,651 3B A3, 16,206,021 2,487 906 10,000
Crhar tiabititics 22,034 2517.300 1,003,063 4,173 2171
Acezwals and deferred incoime 701,250 443,008 471,994 42 546 {6,018
Total linhilitics 40,630,143 41,830,207 17 683077 2,534 0015 119,089
ity
Share c.‘:pim[ 10,350,000 9,500 2100 B 000,000 7,000,000 7.000,000
Invasiment revaluation raserve {181,675) (92,50%) 69,901 35,595 i
Accomulnted losses {2,994,330) ([,602,92%) (697.259) {305,761) (£26,132}
Fotal eguity T 173,286 7804162 7372642 6,730,154 & 870 861
Total linhilities nnd equily A6,803,929 449 635 06% 25,055,719 42064759 6,992,957
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S Yoar Sutmmacy

Btatemuent of cash flows

Cash Muwes frome operating actlvities
[nterest and commission received
[nterest snd commigsion paid

Cashy paymesnts o emplayess ansd supplies

Operating Joss bufore ehamges n operating assets anc
liahilities

Caush  fHows  from  operating  activities  before

changes in sperating axsels and lialilities

Mel istereass it doposily from cuslomers
Mat incraase in other assels
MNet movement in other Bakilitees

et cash [ronv/{used in) operating nctivitics

Cash Mows from imvesting activities
Prarchase of propary, plant and couiptaet
Pugchase of intangible assots

Acuisition of financial instruments

Pepeceds trom sale of Enancial instrumments

téet engh frgenf{iesed in) investing activities

Cash fows from Anaocing activilics
Progeifs from the iggee of shaoe eapind

[nervasef(decronse) in ensh and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivilents of the beginning of the
yeir/period

Cugh ond casle equiviebents af the end ol the
year/periad

2015 2014 20HA 2002 2011
EUR EUR EUR CUR ELR
2,238,214 1.409,212 6,633 230443 119,723
(1,726, 228) (§50,357) (161.724) (3.855) -
(.847.200 (1.349.201) wem.  Logmo, e
i o
e oA (60%,56) (524313 (52,297}
106,000
10,476,673 22,224 536 13,718,115 2,374,582
(99,431) (83.056) (23,620} (5.899) (41,989)
(2,495,265) 1,512,237 1,060,892 4173 19,089
6,440,163 22,661,443 14,086,814 §318.3113 {25.207)
1,604} (18,617} (11,763) (44,540} 12,006}
(70,32%) (102,26%) (123,390) (22.34%) )
(9,579,640) (31960411 {13,130,033) (,067.517) (2,854,565}
11,7A3,676 Y 468,815 5072951 2,537,125
2,132,187 (22.612975) £8,194,14%) (5,547,175} (2,456 574)
RS0 IMHY 1,500,000 1,009,000 7,000,000
A8 430 .
9,428,320 134843 6 592666 (3.608,832) 4,528,219
9270492 773053 £79,381 1,528,2(9
: 9
18,698,812 T.2170.492 7,722,053 £729.347 4,528,219
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